
 

 

 
 

12 October 2022 
 

Dear Councillor 
 
Summons to a Meeting of the Full COUNCIL 
 
I hereby summon you to attend the meeting of the Full Council to be held on Thursday, 20 October 
2022 at 7.30 pm. The meeting will be held at Council Chamber, Runnymede Civic Centre, 
Addlestone. 
 

 
PAUL TURRELL 
Chief Executive 
01932 425500 
Email: paul.turrell@runnymede.gov.uk 
 

A G E N D A 
  
1.   Mayor's Announcements 

 
 

 
2.   Minutes 

 
To confirm and sign, as a correct record, the Minutes of the meeting of the Council 
held on 21 July 2022, as previously circulated.  
 

 

 
3.   Apologies for Absence 

 
 

 
4.   Declarations of Interest 

 
If Members have an interest in an item, please complete a Member Interest Form 
and email it to Democratic.Services@runnymede.gov.uk by 5pm on the day of the 
meeting. Members are advised to contact the Corporate Head of Law and 
Governance prior to the meeting if they wish to seek advice on a potential interest. 
 

 

 
5.   Speaking or Questions from Members of the Public under Standing Order 12 

 
Any Questions received will be circulated separately following the deadline for 
submission of questions from the public. 
 

 

 

Public Document Pack

1

mailto:Democratic.Services@runnymede.gov.uk


 

 

6.   Petitions 
 
To receive any petitions from Members of the Council under Standing Order No 
19. 
 

 

 
7.   Questions from Members of the Council under Standing Order 13 

 
Question from Cllr Abby King to the Leader of the Council: 
  
As Paul Scully MP, the new Minister of State at the Department for levelling up, 
declared recently there is more “fat to be trimmed” in local government, how is the 
Leader going to respond to a further experiment with austerity politics and the 
threat it brings to the services we provide? 
  
Question from Cllr Rhys Davies to the Leader of the Council: 
  
As highlighted in the new corporate business plan, 1,620 of Runnymede’s 
residents live in absolute poverty, 8% of our total population and 11.1% higher 
than the average in Surrey. Given the refusal of the new Prime Minister to confirm 
she will be uprating benefits in line with inflation, or with general wages, what new 
funding as of this month will the Leader be announcing to support families who are 
below the absolute poverty line and those additional households who will now fall 
below that because of the prime minister’s determination to transfer wealth from 
the poorest to the richest? 
  
Question from Cllr Robert King to the Leader of the Council: 
  
Is the Leader committed to continuing to provide free bin collection services to 
churches, certain charities and other religious groups which have a community 
outlook, as Runnymede has previously done so for many years? If he is, will he be 
instructing officers, along with the chair of Environment & Sustainability 
Committee, to cancel demands for new trade collection contracts when missed 
bins collections have been challenged by these institutions.  
  
Question from Cllr Isabel Mullens to the Leader of the Council: 
  
The Empowering Communities Strategy of the Corporate Business Plan 
references the importance of reaching residents through social media. Could the 
leader of the council say what proportion of our residents do not have access or 
the ability to work with social media, so that we can better address the problem of 
how to reach these digitally excluded people? 
 

 

 
8.   Recommendation from Community Services Committee - 15 September 2022 

- School Transport Service 
 
To consider the following Minute and recommendation from Community Services 
Committee held on 15 September 2022.  The full agenda report and any related 
appendix was circulated with the agenda for that Committee and is available on 
the Council’s website. 
  
Following on from a number of previous reports and decisions regarding the 
School Transport Service, emerging from the legacy Yellow Bus Service, the 
Committee, was asked to make a recommendation to full Council about its future. 

  
Members were referred to previous debate and details as to how the full-service 
model would work and how the three options before them had been arrived at. 
  
Members were advised that after the Council’s decision to proceed with a service 

 

2

https://democracy.runnymede.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=146&MId=744&Ver=4


 

 

in 2020, Officers worked on the implementation of an in-house service model, as 
part of an integrated offer within the Council’s Community Transport service.  This 
proved very challenging for a number of operational, financial and logistical 
reasons.  The model reached the point of procurement of vehicles.  However, the 
impact of the pandemic and supply chain issues in relation to build of ordered 
vehicles, resulted in successive delays to commencement of the service. 

  
Therefore, Officers reviewed the options and viability of the service, bearing in 
mind the Council’s financial position post pandemic, together with the 
consequence of parents and children making alternative travel arrangements to 
school, some as a result of changes within homes and communities. 
  
As a result, Full Council in July 2021, approved cancelling the procurement 
arrangements relating to the leasing of 7 x Community Transport vehicles, and 
resolved that delivery of any future service be delayed until September 2022, at 
the earliest, to allow Officers to consider service options and also other 
opportunities to support children and young people in the borough.  For example: 
  

       Provision of play area equipment  
       Provision of other recreational equipment 
       Access to sport and leisure activities either at a concessionary rate or 

free at the point of access 
       Provision of new/support for existing diversionary activities aimed at 

children and young people 
       Support to voluntary and community organisations in the development 

of activities and leisure opportunities for children and young people.   
  
The Committee was presented with three options: 

  
1.    To discontinue the service and re-allocate some or all of the budget 

previously agreed to provide a school transport service to Community 
Services to develop leisure and recreation opportunities for children and 
young people in the borough in line with the Council’s Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy 
  

2.    To provide a reduced targeted school transport service to children and 
young people as referred by local schools, and allocate any budgetary 
underspend to deliver some of the priorities in the Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy. 
  

3.    To revert to the original decision and proceed as previously agreed by full 
Council in September 2020 to provide a full school transport service. 

  
The Committee was advised that no school transport had been provided for two 
full academic years and with the likely lead in time being a further two years the 
relevance of the service was questioned.  Members generally agreed that those 
children and families who previously accessed the service appeared to have 
adapted to there being no service and like pupils new to secondary schools in 
Runnymede had made alternative arrangements.  This was also the case for 
children transferring to secondary schools in the 2022/2023 academic year.  
Nevertheless it was acknowledged that had a service been available, potentially 
children and families may have chosen to access it. 
  
Some Members were concerned that children most in need of the service and 
least able to afford other means of transport would be disadvantaged.  However, 
other Members reported receiving no feedback to this effect, noting the assistance 
available from the County Council in this regard. 
  

3



 

 

In terms of financial viability, some Members recognised that the Council’s subsidy 
per pupil, which could be even higher in the future, was already excessive.  The 
section 106 monies had long since disappeared to fund the original ‘yellow bus 
scheme’, leaving a larger shortfall to make up.   
  
The majority of the Committee considered that the subsidy assisted fewer children 
and young people (250) than using the budget to develop the Council’s Health and 
Wellbeing strategy, which would be of wider community benefit.  It was noted that 
delivering the service was also likely to cost more, primarily fuel, and procuring 
vehicles.  There was also the cost of re-grading the Community Transport drivers 
to reflect the development of their role and aid recruitment.  Therefore provision of 
the future school transport service was very expensive in the current climate. 
  
A number of Members also considered the detrimental effects on the environment 
of using diesel vehicles, about which there was currently no choice and in the 
context of climate change, the benefits of walking and cycling to school, 
supporting the Active Travel opportunities, for which funding could be available.  
Other considerations were discussions about the wider Community Transport 
service across Runnymede and Surrey Heath, the role and feedback of the 
County Council with whom the Council was currently contracted to provide other 
bus services.  The latter were under review and would be discussed at the Health 
and Wellbeing Member Working Party in due course.  The County Council had 
also observed no significant demand for public transport at peak school times with 
the demise of the school transport scheme.   
  
Members were reminded that, when fully up and running, this service was 
estimated to cost in excess of £250,000 in a full year with plenty of risk 
surrounding that figure, all of which were set out in previous reports to committee.  
In addition, there was significant risk to this figure with potential additional lease 
costs increasing this by £70,000+ before any other inflationary effects were taken 
into account. 

  
Officers advised that, by the time the new vehicles were estimated to arrive this 
service would have been off the road for nearly 4 years in which time new parents 
would have found alternative transportation arrangements and a majority of old 
users would have left school.  If the scheme was to progress as originally agreed, 
a fresh data collection exercise would be needed to assess the likely take up to 
ensure that the proposals were still viable.  Some Members expressed concern 
that schools had not been consulted further prior to the report being submitted. 
  
The Committee noted the legal implications set out in the report.  Principally, that 
the Council was under no legal duty to provide a school transport service.  The 
legal liability for such provision rested with the Local Education Authority and was 
subject to eligibility criteria.   
  
Members noted that Officers would, in due course, provide Corporate 
Management Committee with a report setting out how to utilise the budgeted sum 
of £215,000, with a view to improvements in parks and play areas to be discussed 
by the Health and Wellbeing Member Working Party  
  
The Council’s Equalities Group had advised that a Full Impact Assessment would 
be required, to be considered by full Council. 
  
Members were conscious that in making a recommendation, the Council still had 
an underlying budget deficit of approximately £2m a year to be addressed. 
  

Recommended to Full Council on 20 October 2022 that: 
  

4



 

 

the previously agreed discretionary school transport service is not to 
proceed, and that from the budgeted sum of £215,000, as determined 
by Corporate Management Committee, an agreed sum is allocated to 
Community Services for the development of leisure and recreation 
opportunities for children and young people across the borough 
  

A named vote was requested and the voting was as follows: 
  
For: (8) Councillors A Balkan, T Burton, D Clarke, V Cunningham, S Dennett,  
C Howorth, C Mann, J Wilson. 
Against: (2) A King and S Jenkins. 
  
This being the case, and in accordance with Standing Orders, the other options 
(two and three) ‘fell’ and did not need to be voted on. 
  

9.   Recommendation from Corporate Management Committee - 22 September 
2022 - Corporate Plan 
 
To consider the following Minute and recommendation from Corporate 
Management Committee held on 22 September 2022.  The full Corporate Plan 
and overarching report is available on the Council’s website. 
  
The Chief Executive advised that four of the five strands of the Corporate Plan 
had previously been approved by this Committee, with the Organisational 
Development Strategy the only strand that remained subject to approval ahead of 
the entire strategy going forward for final approval at October’s full Council 
meeting.  
  
The Chief Executive thanked the Members who had provided feedback on the 
Corporate Plan, and whilst the comments did not affect the overall strategy they 
had been noted to help develop the associated action plans. The Chief Executive 
confirmed to a Member that the action plans, containing some 200 actions that 
would be divided into Committee areas, would be circulated to all Members in 
advance of October’s full Council meeting. Those actions would also help to 
prepare for next year’s budget by identifying which actions required growth.  
  
In responding to a Member’s question about the Climate Change strategy, the 
Chief Executive confirmed that regular reporting on climate change initiatives 
would take place across all Committee areas, with the Leader confirming that an 
overarching report would be a regular item at Corporate Management Committee.  
  
When introducing the Organisational Development strategy, the Corporate Head 
of HR and Organisational Development confirmed that collaborative working with 
other authorities was already in place across a number of areas, whilst the 
strategy was closely linked to the Talent Management Strategy, which would be 
going forward for approval at October’s Corporate Management Committee.  
  
A further initiative would be to introduce a corporate induction course to go with 
the Induction checklists and a ‘Train the Trainer’ course for managers with the aim 
of encouraging internal talent.  
  

Recommended to Full Council on 20 October that: 
  
a) The Organisational Development Strategy was recommended to 
full Council on 20 October 2022 for approval;  
  
b) The overarching Corporate Plan was recommended to full Council 
on 20 October 2022 for approval.  

 

5

https://democracy.runnymede.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=163&MId=772&Ver=4


 

 

  
c) All other elements of the Corporate Plan, already approved by this 
Committee, were recommended to full Council on 20 October 2022 for 
approval. 

  
10.   Recommendation from Corporate Management Committee - 13 October 2022 

- Calendar of Meetings 2023/24 
 
As the meeting of Corporate Management Committee was held after the 
publication of this Summons, the recommendation will be included in the 
Supplementary Summons, subject to Corporate Management Committee 
approval. 
 

 

 
11.   Changes to Membership of Committees 

 
Further to the Corporate Head of Law and Governance receiving notification from 
the Leader of the Labour and Co-operative Group that his Group wished to make 
a permanent change of membership regarding the Housing and Planning 
Committees, it is proposed to change the membership of: 
  
a. Planning Committee – Councillor A King replacing Councillor R Davies 
b. Housing Committee – Councillor R Davies replacing Councillor A King 
   

                       It is a requirement that such changes for the remainder of this municipal year are 
resolved by  
Council further to the procedure set out in Article 4 of the Constitution.  

  
                       RECOMMENDATION:  

  
That the changes proposed by the Labour and Co-operative Group to the 
membership of the Housing and Planning Committees for the remainder of 
this Municipal year (2022/2023), be approved  
  
(To resolve) 
 

 

 
12.   Notices of Motion from Members of the Council under Standing Order 15 

 
From: Cllr Don Whyte 
  
Title: Runnymede Borough Council (RBC) to support the Local Electricity 
Bill. 
  
Motivation: 
  
This motion is being brought forward by the Runnymede Liberal Democrat Group 
to support Runnymede Borough Council’s (RBC) endeavours to reduce the 
carbon footprint of both the Council and the Borough as a whole. 
  
The Local Electricity Bill1 would help promote the development of locally 
generated renewable electricity.   
  
The Council notes: 

1. There needs to be a fundamental change in how we generate and 
consume energy in all aspects of our lives. Both electricity generation and 
distribution are undergoing rapid evolution, in both shape and scale. 
 
 

 

6



 

 

2. The distribution network (grid), must now cope with power flows in both 
directions.  Electrification of heat and transport will require an expected 
quadrupling of electricity capacity. Local community-led energy schemes 
can make a significant contribution to addressing both issues and 
encourage a sense of local empowerment to tackle climate change. 
 

3. Local schemes encourage generation and storage to match local demand 
thus relieving pressure on the grid.  
 

4. Local schemes would be given new impetus and be able to contribute 
more renewable energy if local people could buy their electricity directly 
from local suppliers. 
 

5. Currently the disproportionate cost of meeting regulatory approvals makes 
it prohibitive to be a local energy supplier at a local scale and so, under the 
current system, this energy is sold to the nationally licensed energy 
suppliers (EDF, British Gas, etc) at a nominal price.2 

 
6.     That making the costs proportionate to the scale of a renewable electricity 

supplier’s operation would create significant opportunities for local 
companies, community groups and councils to be providers of locally 
generated renewable electricity directly to local people, businesses and 
organisations, if they wished.  
 

7.     That surplus revenues received by such local companies, community 
groups or councils that choose to become local renewable electricity 
providers could be used to help improve the local economy, local services 
and facilities and to reduce local greenhouse gas emissions.  
 

8.     Locally generated renewable electricity could make a significant 
contribution to reducing the carbon emissions of Runnymede and more 
generally throughout the United Kingdom. 
 

9.     That the Parliamentary Environmental Audit Committee, as a result of its 
2021 Technological Innovations and Climate Change inquiry, 
recommended that a Right to Local Supply for local energy suppliers be 
established. 
 

10.  The Local Electricity Bill supported by a cross-party group of 311 MPs, 
including 120 Conservative MPs, 120 Labour MPs and all Liberal 
Democrat MPs, if made law, would establish a Right to Local Supply which 
would promote local renewable electricity supply by making the setup and 
running costs of selling renewable electricity to local customers 
proportionate to the size of the supply company. 
  

11.  That Surrey County Council is among the many Local Authorities 
supporting the Local Electricity Bill. 
  

The Council Believes That: 
  

1.     There is a real opportunity for local renewable energy generation to 
provide much needed revenue to RBC and other organisations. 
  

2.     The generation of renewable energy locally could make a material 
contribution towards tackling our aspirations to achieve net zero carbon 
emissions. 
  

3.     The delivery of locally generated renewable energy would help address 

7



 

 

some of the infrastructure challenges currently facing the electricity 
generating and distribution industries, particularly in the south east of 
Britain.  
  

4.     The Local Electricity Bill should become law expeditiously by being 
included into any upcoming energy legislation. 

  
The Council Resolves That 
  

       It will support the Local Electricity Bill.  
       It will publicise its support for the Local Electricity Bill.  
       It will, through the Leader of the Council, ask the MP for Runnymede and 

Weybridge, Dr Ben Spencer, to support the Local Electricity Bill when it 
comes before Parliament.   

  
Footnotes: 
  
1. The Bill was introduced by a cross-party group of MPs last Parliamentary 
session and is due to be reintroduced again in the next few weeks. Further 
information can be found at https://powerforpeople.org.uk/  
2. Energy retailers currently pay around 3p per kilowatt hour (kWh).  The domestic 
retail price of electricity over in the last year has ranged from 16p per kWh in June 
2021 to the latest capped rate of 34p per kWh. 
 
 
 
From: Cllr Robert King 
  
Title: Ending Fuel Poverty and lowering energy use in homes. Council and 
Community action through a Green Bond 
  
Motivation: 
  
This motion is being brought forward by the Runnymede Labour & Co-operative 
Group to support Runnymede Borough Council’s response to the cost-of-living 
crisis and to support meeting the council’s target of net zero in Scope 1 emissions 
by 2030 and of net zero across all emission by 2050 as set by the UK 
government. 
  
This Council notes: 
 

(1)            The serve strain that the cost-of-living crisis and the rise in energy 
prices are having on all households in Runnymede. 

(2)            That the new energy price cap, which came into effect on the 1st of 
October 2022, resulted in the average capped unit of electricity rising 
by 27% and gas rising by 40%. (See appendix for figures for bill metre 
customers only). 

(3)            That the typical household energy bill will now be around £2,500, up 
from £1,971 per year, with this varying between property types. Ofgem 
estimates that a typical household has 2.4 people living in it, with 
usage of 242 kwh of electricity and 1,000 kWh of gas per month.  

(4)            That following averages per property type under the new price 
guarantee the average price per property type will be the below:  
A purpose-built flat - £1,750 (Before October the 1st  £1378) 
A mid-terraced house £2,350 (Before October the 1st £1850) 
A semi-detached house £2,650 (Before October the 1st £2087) 
A detached property £3,300 (Before October the 1st £2598) 

8

https://powerforpeople.org.uk/


 

 

(5)            That the Energy Bill Support Scheme from the 1st of October awards 
£400, none means tested, to all standard energy households, split over 
the next 6 months of bills through which will result in a typical bill for 
energy by residents of £2,100, up from the £1971 per year previously.  

(6)            That the average housing stock in the UK are some of the most 
expensive to heat in Europe due to poorer insulation and poorer 
maintenance causing heat to dissipate through walls, windows and 
doors. That the higher prevalence of older gas boilers in UK housing 
stock means more gas is used to heat water and provide heating than 
elsewhere in Europe with more modern heating equipment 

(7)            That is driven due to more than 52% of homes in England being built 
before 1965 and nearly 20% being built before 1919, as detailed by 
research from the New Economics Foundation.  

(8)            That just over half of UK homes have an EPC rating certificate, given 
they have not been rented or sold to a new owner since 2008 meaning 
they have not been required to obtain certification, limiting residential 
understanding of the effect poor insulation is having on building 
efficiency and energy leakage. 

(9)            That many lower income households are trapped in a cycle of high bills, 
low home energy efficiency and insufficient savings to upgrade their 
insulation, boilers, windows and doors or install green energy 
generation on their homes. 

(10)         The ambition of Runnymede Council to ensure all its social housing 
stock is at an EPC rating of C or above and that the council achieves 
Net Zero on its scope 1 emissions by 2030 
 

This Council believes that: 
  

(1)   Lower- and middle-income household should not face barriers to making 
their homes more efficient and cheaper to run because of constraint in 
finding the finance to upgrade their homes. 

(2)   That all homes in Runnymede should have an EPC rating and certificate 
by the end of 2030, so owners can understand the rating of their older 
homes and the steps they can take to improve their energy efficiency and 
reduce their bills. 

(3)   The best way of reducing energy bills is through a combination of 
switching generation to renewable sources of energy and improving the 
insulation of homes. 

(4)   That many homeowners and landlords face barriers of knowledge and lack 
a trusted contractor to carry out the works to insulate their homes, install 
new windows and doors, install local energy generation units like Solar 
Panels or electric vehicle charging points. 

(5)   That community cooperation is essential if Runnymede is to decarbonise 
as a whole Borough in scope 1,2 and 3 emissions by 2050 and that 
empowering green investors will facilitate a quicker transition to a carbon 
neutral borough than Council lead action on its own. 

(6)   Green Bonds, like those launched by Camden and Warrington Councils, 
are effective tools to both gather the financial resources and community 
drive to decarbonise Council activities, private homes and community 
projects. And that by using investment platforms such as abundance 
investment or other providers, Councils can reach out to their residents, 
engage them in projects and share in the commonwealth produced by 
green investments. 

  
This Council Resolves that: 
  

9



 

 

(1)   Runnymede becomes a member of the End Fuel Poverty Coalition. 

(2) That the head of Environmental Services produces a new strategy 
and publicity campaign to encourage all households to undertake an 
EPC rating of their property, and this be remitted to Environment and 
Sustainability Committee before their January 2023 meeting. 

(3)  Working with the Council’s 151 officer, climate change officer and 
head of assets and regeneration, a report be presented, within 6 
months, to the Corporate Management Committee on the logistics of 
launching a Green Bond in Runnymede. Outlining any costs, 
resource constraints and an initial study of what other authorities 
have done and a list of recommendation for Runnymede. 
 

(4)   That this full council supports the principle of Runnymede launching 
a Green Bond where residents could invest as little as £5 in: 
a.     schemes which would see the council decarbonise its own 

activities faster 
b.    schemes in private homes in Runnymede to improve their energy 

efficiency and green energy generation 
c.     schemes in the community, such as supporting Surrey County 

with the role our of EV charging points, which would help achieve 
carbon neutrality before or by 2050. 
 

(5)   That the environmental Place Shaping working party, begin to draw 
up a list of projects which could be funded by a future green bond 
and the process by which residents could suggest projects 
themselves, working with the future citizens panel. 
 

(6)   A report be delivered back to full council within 1 year detailing either 
the launch of a green bond or the steps needed to be taken for 
Runnymede to launch such an investment scheme. 

  
We therefore remit this motion, subject to full councils’ approval to the 
committees above, within the detailed timescale. 
  
Appendix 1 

Energy Type New energy price cap 
guarantee from 1st of 
October 2022 

Previous price cap until 
30th of September 2022 

Gas Unit rate: 10.33p per kWh 
  
Standing charge: 28.49p per 
day 

Unit rate: 7.37p per kWh 
  
Standing charge: 27.22p 
per day 

Electric Unit rate: 34.04p per kWh 
  
Standing charge: 46.36p per 
day 

Unit rate: 28.34p per kWh 
 
Standing charge: 45.34p 
per day 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10



 

 

From: Cllr Abby King 
  
Title: Tackling violence against women and girls: Making misogyny a hate 
crime.  
  
Motivation: 
  
This motion is being brought forward by the Runnymede Labour & Co-operative 
Group to support Runnymede Borough Council’s response to a rise in violence 
against women and girls.  
  
This council notes: 
  
Women and girls around the borough are subject to harassment and abuse due to 
their gender. In 2021, there were 20 counts of violence and sexual offences for 
every 1,000 residents, a number higher than in previous years[1].   
  
Misogyny disproportionately affects those from minority communities. ‘Not 
including misogyny within the hate crime framework ignores the experiences of 
women who are subject to hatred based on multiple factors’[2]. 
  
Cuts to police budgets and a decline in community policing in the last ten years 
have led to a rise in unsolved hate crimes, a reduction in policing capacity to 
respond to antisocial behaviour and a lower number of sexual and harassment 
crimes having perpetrators  brought to justice 
  
The Council Believes that: 
  
Misogyny should be recorded as a hate crime and policing resources should be 
increased nationally to levels above those seen in 2010, to ensure that police 
forces are able to deal with these new responsibilities.  
  
It is encouraging to see the support we have seen from our Borough Commander 
at Runnymede Police in responding to violence against women and girls. 
  
The Government was wrong to whip against an amendment to classify misogyny 
as a hate crime.  
  
The Council Resolves That: 
  

(1)   Runnymede is committed to ending hate crime in all its forms and 
work with organisations such as Women’s Aid and Pride in Surrey 
for a safer Runnymede. 

(2)   The Council, through the crime and disorder committee, 
commission a report within the priorities of the Borough 
Commander, to crack down on hate crime in the Borough and 
learn how lessons from victims of abuse can improve the Council 
direct response and its joint work with Runnymede Police. 

(3)   The Leader of the Council writes to our local MP, calling on them 
to lobby for misogyny to become a hate crime.   

  
We therefore remit this motion, subject to full councils’ approval to the 
committee above. 
  
 
 
 
 

11



 

 

From: Cllr Rhys Davies 
  
Title: Keeping Runnymede & Surrey frack free 
  
Motivation: 
  
This motion is being brought forward by the Runnymede Labour & Co-operative 
Group to support Runnymede Borough Council’s response to the government’s 
statement that there will only be fracking where there is local support. 
  
This council notes: 
 

(1)   That fracking is unlikely to bring down the price of gas, electricity or petrol 
prices given these are driven by international commodity prices. 

(2)   That fracking sites cause an ecological impact on biodiversity, pollute 
water tables and lead to sites which were once green and pleasant spaces 
for people to enjoy and wildlife to thrive, to be ecologically damaged often 
beyond repair. 

(3)   That fracking construction and the operation of sites increases traffic on 
roads and has a limited economic impact on the areas it occurs. 

(4)   That the process of fracking in sites already operating in the UK has begun 
to support a link with its activity and ground tremors and land movements, 
not felt before the process started. 
 

The Council believes that: 
 

(1)   Fracking in Runnymede would be inappropriate if we are to achieve 
carbon neutrality as a Borough before or by 2050 and improve the quality 
of local air. 

(2)   The Business Secretary is wrong to brand all members and residents who 
oppose fracking as “socialist” and that this Council recognises that 
opposition to fracking comes from all communities and a range of political 
supporters. 

(3)   That this council stands across the political divide to oppose fracking and 
protect the Green belt that makes Runnymede such an attractive and 
visually pleasant place to live and work. 

  
The Council Resolves That: 
  

(1)   In light of the Government’s Statement that there will only be fracking 
where there is local support, the Leader issues a joint letter, signed 
with all opposition leaders who wish to co-sign, that confirms to the 
Prime Minister, the Secretary of State for Business, Energy and 
Industrial Strategy and the Minister for State (Minister for Climate), of 
this Council’s opposition to fracking in the Borough of Runnymede. 

(2)   That the Leader also writes to our local MP and Leader of the mineral 
authority, Surrey County Council, to voice this Council’s view that it 
is opposed to fracking and it is not supported by the residents we 
represent. 
  
We therefore remit this motion, subject to full councils’ approval to 
the Environment and Sustainability committee  

 

 
[1] Brighton Analytics Limited, 2022 
[2] Fawcett Society, 2022 
 
 
  

12



 

 

13.   Minority Group Priority Business 
 
No items of Minority Group Priority business have been registered under Standing 
Order 23. 
 

 

 
14.   Press and Public to be Excluded by Resolution 

 
Exclusion of Press and Public  
Officers' Recommendation that –  
  
the press and public be excluded from the meeting during discussion for the 
remainder of the meeting under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972 on the grounds that the report in question would be likely to involve 
disclosure of exempt information of the description specified in paragraph 3 of 
Schedule 12A of the Act.  
  
(To resolve) 
 

 

 
15.   Recommendation from Special Housing Committee - 18 October 2022 - 

Housing Revenue Account Development 
 
As the meeting of Special Housing Committee was held after the publication of 
this Summons, the recommendation will be included in a Supplementary 
Summons, subject to Housing Committee approval. 
 

 

 

13


	Agenda

